PHIL WEISER Attorney General

NATALIE HANLON LEH Chief Deputy Attorney General

SHANNON STEVENSON Solicitor General

TANJA WHEELER Associate Chief Deputy Attorney General



RALPH L. CARR COLORADO JUDICIAL CENTER 1300 Broadway, 10th Floor Denver, Colorado 80203 Phone (720) 508-6000

### STATE OF COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF LAW

### AGENDA

### Colorado Natural Resources Trustees Meeting February 8, 2024 9:30 am to 11:30 am

**Location:** Colorado Department of Natural Resources 1313 Sherman Street, Denver, Colorado Room 719

Note: A hyperlink to a Microsoft Teams meeting will be emailed to Trustees and staff and will be posted on the Trustee website: https://coag.gov/office-sections/natural-resources-environment/trustees/whats-new/

### **Open Session**

- 1. <u>Approve Agenda 1 minute</u>
- 2. Approval of Minutes from November 14, 2023 Meeting 5 minutes

Action Item: (1) Review and approve minutes from November 14, 2023 meeting

Document: (1) Draft minutes from November 14, 2023 meeting

3. <u>Budgets Update - (Jennifer Talbert) - 5 minutes</u>

Action Items: None

Document: (1) Budget Spreadsheet 4. <u>Update on Department of Interior NRD Regulations – (David Kreutzer,</u> <u>Jennifer Talbert, Rob Harris) – 15 minutes</u>

Action Items: None

Documents: None

5. <u>Memorandum of Understanding with Department of Interior – (Emily Splitek)</u> <u>– 10 minutes</u>

Action Item: (1) Consider signing Memorandum of Understanding with Department of Interior

Document: (1) Draft Memorandum of Understanding with Department of Interior

6. <u>Durango and Silverton Meetings Update – (All) – 15 minutes</u>

Action Items: None

Documents: None

7. <u>Bonita Peak Mining District – (Jennifer Talbert, Jason King, Mark Rudolph) –</u> <u>10 minutes</u>

Action Items: None

Documents: None

### **Executive Session**

8. <u>Home Lake State Wildlife Area – (Shelley Hickerson, Mindi May) – 10 minutes</u>

Action Items: None

Documents: None

### **Open Session**

### 9. <u>Report from Executive Session – (Lukas Staks) – 1 minute</u>

Action Items: None

Documents: None



### Colorado Natural Resource Damages Trustees Meeting Minutes November 14, 2023 (Approved \_\_\_\_\_)

### In Attendance:

#### **TRUSTEES**

Phil Weiser, Attorney GeneralDan Gibbs, Executive Director, Colorado Department of Natural Resources (DNR)Trisha Oeth, Director of Environmental Programs, Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE)

### TRUSTEE STAFF

Lukas Staks, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Office of the Attorney General, Natural Resources and Environment Section (NRE) David Kreutzer, First Assistant Attorney General, NRE Jason King, Senior Assistant Attorney General, NRE Emily Splitek, Senior Assistant Attorney General, NRE Shelley Hickerson, Assistant Attorney General, NRE Jennifer Talbert, CDPHE Susan Newton, CDPHE Melody Mascarenez, CDPHE Mark Rudolph, CDPHE Robert Harris, DNR Mindi May, DNR

### **OTHER STATE STAFF**

Laura Kelly, Senior Paralegal, NRE Savannah Padilla, Administrative Assistant, NRE

### FELLOWS AND INTERNS

Benjamin Elrod, NRE Attorney General Fellow Alexandra Nielsen, NRE Intern Andrea Bonato, NRE Intern

### PUBLIC

Bryce Howe, Colorado Central Conservancy Wendy McDermott, Colorado Central Conservancy Trent Bailey, City and County of Denver Laura Archuleta, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Paula Schulte, City of Thornton

### **Open Session**

Trustee Weiser called the hybrid meeting (held in Carr Building Room 1E and via Teams) to order at approximately 1:00 p.m. on November 14, 2023. The meeting's purpose was to brief the Trustees on the current status of issues relating to Natural Resource Damages (NRD) projects, and to request direction and/or approval for various actions.

### <u>Agenda</u>

Trustee Gibbs moved to approve the Agenda. Trustee Oeth seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously approved.

### Minutes

Trustee Weiser presented the minutes from the August 14, 2023 Trustee Meeting. Trustee Gibbs moved to approve the August 14, 2023 minutes. Trustee Oeth seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously approved.

### **Budgets Update**

In response to the Trustees request, Jennifer Talbert pointed out that a new row was added to the spreadsheet for "Update" which includes one or two sentences about the status of each site and is intended to keep the Trustees up-to-date.

### California Gulch – Central Colorado Conservancy Land Acquisition

Susan Newton reported that the Central Colorado Conservancy (CCC) had approached Trustee staff to use the remaining state NRD funds of \$160,000, plus an additional allocation of \$350,000 from the federal Cal Gulch fund to acquire additional parcels to expand the Andrick Preserve. Ms. Newton introduced Wendy McDermott and Bryce Howe from CCC. Mr. Howe gave a presentation which described the previous land acquisitions in the Arkansas River Community Preserve in Lake County and provided details of CCC's Phase 4 Project including the acquisition of 17 additional parcels that would protect wildlife habitat and migration corridors, and expand public access.

Discussion ensued about whether CDPHE or the Department of Interior (DOI) would administer contracts for these funds if approved. Jennifer Talbert presented an amendment to the resolution which allows Trustee staff to determine whether CDPHE or DOI will contract with CCC and transfer the funds accordingly. Laura Archuleta of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service assured the Trustees that the federal Trustees support this amended resolution and can provide the \$350,000 from the federal fund. Trustee Gibbs inquired about CCC's future plans in the area, public access, and a regional strategy for recreational needs. A wide-ranging discussion ensued regarding the historical restoration planning process and other natural resource matters in the area.

Trustee Gibbs moved to approve the resolution as amended awarding CCC's Phase 4 Project the remaining \$160,000 in the state Cal Gulch NRD account plus all accrued interest, which will be combined with \$350,000 from the federal Cal Gulch fund, to be administered by either CDPHE or DOI. Trustee Oeth seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously approved.

### **Rocky Mountain Arsenal – Thornton Project Extension**

Rob Harris explained the City of Thornton request for a one-year extension for its stream restoration project called Big Dry Creek. The Trustees originally approved funding from the Rocky Mountain Arsenal Foundation Fund in 2012 and amended the resolution in 2018 to approve a shift in scope resulting in an extension five years. Mr. Harris described the good work done by the City to date, but he noted there remains one area – the upland vegetation - that needs a one-year extension to meet the criteria. Mr. Harris introduced Paula Schulte from the City of Thornton who confirmed that the project would be finished within the next year.

Trustee Oeth moved to approve the resolution extending the funding period for the City of Thornton's Big Dry Creek Project in the amount of \$50,000 for one year, until November 14, 2024. Trustee Gibbs seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously approved.

### **Rocky Mountain Arsenal – Presentation from City and County of Denver**

Susan Newton reported that restoration of five acres in Globeville has been completed thanks to a community effort led by Groundwork Denver and contracting through the City of Denver. She introduced Trent Bailey, a Project Manager from Denver Parks and Recreation, who provided an overview of the Platte Farm Open Space Project, a former brownfield property remediated by CDPHE from 1982 to 2011. Mr Bailey explained that the majority of the \$552,885 awarded by the Trustees was used for native revegetation and wildlife habitat, new and preserved trees, and pollinator gardens resulting in overall increased biodiversity. Trustee Weiser inquired about the availability of additional NRD funds to support Denver in their ongoing effort to enhance the South Platte River for recreational opportunities, especially in abandoned industrial areas.

### Rocky Mountain Arsenal – Update on Solicitation for Project Proposals (SPP)

Susan Newton reported that an SPP has been issued and Trustee staff received notifications from the City of Denver and Commerce City that they were interested. Jennifer Talbert generally reminded the Trustees of the project selection guidance document that includes criteria for evaluating project proposals. Rob Harris noted that environmental justice concerns were considered during the 2022 revision of the guidance document.

### Home Lake State Wildlife Area

Shelley Hickerson provided background about the crop duster who may have dusted the south side of Home Lake with pesticides. She added there were no dead fish, but hundreds of thousands of snails died and the lake had to be closed for a month while the contamination was measured. Trustee staff hired Abt to estimate damages for a recreational claim and the impact to invertebrates. Ms. Hickerson noted that, while it was reported to CPW that the crop duster was the likely cause of the incident, the Department of Agriculture is also investigating, and it is their belief that the cause was chemigation that blew into the lake due to wind. The Trustees decided it was best to wait for Abt's estimate, and if it is an amount worth pursuing, staff could then contact the Department of Agriculture to help determine the potential responsible party.

### North St. Vrain

Jason King provided background about a tanker truck rollover on Highway 36 just north of Lyons that dumped approximately 2,500 gallons of gasoline into the North St. Vrain causing a substantial fish kill. He added that, based on an estimate of damages done by Abt, negotiations with the trucking company's insurer resulted in a swift settlement of \$250,000. Staff will be issuing an SPP and hope to bring recommendations to the Trustees at the December 2024 Trustee meeting. Discussion ensued about how to engage local stakeholders in the SPP process.

### **Bonita Peak Mining District**

Jennifer Talbert updated the Trustees on the contracting process for the Bonita Peak Mining District (BPMD) restoration plan (CDPHE completed a quote and offered the bid to Abt). She added that Mark Rudolph is the CDPHE project manager for BPMD NRDs and remediation, and he is familiar with stakeholders in both San Juan and La Plata Counties. Trustee Weiser inquired about the timing of the SPP. Ms. Talbert responded that the restoration plan will include the SPP, so staff hopes to have project proposals for review by the 3<sup>rd</sup> or 4<sup>th</sup> quarter of 2024. She added that staff intends to break the SPP process into two separate phases.

Discussion ensued about the May 9, 2024 Trustee meeting to be held in Durango with separate stakeholder meetings in Silverton.

\*\*\*

Trustee Gibbs remarked on Ginny Brannon's retirement, commending her long and distinguished career of service to the State of Colorado and specifically her contributions to the NRDs program.

At approximately 2:20 p.m., Trustee Gibbs moved to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Oeth seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously approved.

# ITEM #3

Last modified 10/30/2023

### Natural Resource Damages Accounts

NRD Matter	Bonita Peak	California Gulch	Fountain Creek	Idarado	Lowry	N. St. Vrain	
Total Settlement	<i><b>‡</b><i>¢)¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢¢</i></i>	\$10,000,000.00	\$345,000.00	\$1,000,000.00	\$1,606,930.00	\$245,305.00	
Total NRD dollars spent	\$0.00	\$8,928,044.87	\$0.00	\$1,561,412.98	\$1,257,894.52	\$0.00	
Account Balance as of 9/30/2023	\$6,682,320.71	\$5,607,477.66	\$371,763.06	\$206,913.95	\$697,406.97	\$251,696.88	
Trustee Resolution Date	NONE	3/17/2022	4/23/2019	6/24/2019	8/14/2023	NONE	
Current Trustee awarded amount	\$0.00	\$3,953,875.00	\$371,763.06	\$287,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	
Contract Encumbrances	\$0.00	\$5,513,357.96	\$0.00	\$168,200.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	
Remaining funds	., ,	\$94,119.70	\$371,763.06	\$38,713.95	\$697,406.97	\$251,696.88	
Type of Restriction	Restoration Plan required	Follow Restoration Plans developed by State and USFWS	None	None	Groundwater nexus to the South Platte	None	
Remaining funds available	\$239K from Blue Tee will be added from the HSRF in Phase 2.	\$94K remaining for new contracts; DOI has ~\$1M remaining	Interest to CPW, no remaining funds available	Interest to Governor's Basin Project, <b>no</b> <b>remaining funds</b> <b>available</b>	Interest to USFWS, no remaing funds available.	Settlement from December 2022, all funds available	
Update	CDPHE in procurement process for restoration plan contractor	Received proposal to spend the remaining CDPHE held funds, which will also include some federal funds.	CPW is obtaining matching funds - need CDPHE contract by April 2024	Society Turn almost done, TLR to acquire Silver Mountain Mine, Governor Basin delayed due to EPA remedial requirements.	USFWS SOW for the contract is almost completed	CDPHE working on the SPP, which is expected to be published in December	

Last modified 10/30/2023

### Natural Resource Damages Accounts Page 2

Last modified	10/30/2023		naturarn	alural Resource Damages Accounts				
	RMA Recovery RMA Found-		Standard					
NRD Matter	Fund	ation Fund	Shattuck	Metals	Summitville	Suncor	Uravan	Vail Mill Creek
Total Settlement								
amount	\$17,400,000.00	\$10,000,000.00	\$1,250,000.00	\$415,368.00	\$5,000,000.00	\$1,230,000.00	\$1,000,000.00	\$248,660.00
Total NRD dollars								
spent	\$12,188,591.80	\$8,697,832.00	\$1,272,904.00	\$0.00	\$5,144,896.92	\$708,191.40	\$1,177,922.42	\$0.00
Balance as of 09/30/2023	\$8,588,799.28	\$1,525,618.93	\$24,055.81	\$481,207.01	\$250,029.59	\$571,587.77	\$197,122.54	\$248,660.00
Trustee Resolution Date	3/24/2021	3/28/2018	3/17/2022	12/9/2022	1/21/2021	6/9/2022	3/24/2021	NONE
Current award	\$5,707,087.93	\$1,388,523.00	\$30,000.00	\$0.00	\$1,171,620.00	\$1,267,454.00	\$270,000.00	\$0.00
Contract Encumbrances	\$1,281,787.88	\$550,000.00	\$30,000.00	\$0.00	\$225,396.00	\$510,353.00	\$183,813.87	\$0.00
Remaining funds	\$7,307,011.40	\$975,618.93	-\$5,944.19	\$481,207.01	\$24,633.59	\$61,234.77	\$13,308.67	\$248,660.00
Type of Restriction	None	Foundation Fund can only be used with NGC	None	None	Money must be spent in the Alamosa River	None	None	None
Remaining funds available	All funds available on line 19	Waiting for Amended Consent Decree to remove NGC requirements	Only available funds will be paid out	\$230K awarded; remaining funds for Silverton	Interest to TU, no remaining funds available	Interest to TU, no remaining funds available	Interest to WEEDC, no remaining available funds	All funds available on line P9
Update	SPP, which wa	combined for the as published in are waiting for to be submitted.	Project is underway.	Gossan Creek Project delayed due to Lowline Gunnison Fire	In Stream Flow Project is under contract	Restoration is almost completed	Restoration projects are almost completed	CPW identifying project in Gore/ Mill Creek

ITEM #4 NO DOCUMENT

# ITEM #5

### MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE

### United States Department of the Interior and State of Colorado

### REGARDING NATURAL RESOURCE DAMAGE ASSESSMENT, RESTORATION, AND OTHER NATURAL RESOURCE TRUSTEE ACTIVITIES THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF COLORADO

### I. INTRODUCTION

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) by and between the U.S. Department of the Interior and the Colorado Natural Resources Trustees (collectively referred to as the Trustees or Parties), is entered into in recognition of the common interests of the Trustees in the assessment and restoration of the natural resources and associated services that may be injured, destroyed, or lost as a result of the discharge of oil or release of hazardous substances within the State of Colorado.

### II. AUTHORITY

The Parties enter into this MOU in accordance with the natural resource trustee authorities provided for each trustee under: Section 107(f) of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 9607(f); Section 1006 of the Oil Pollution Act (OPA), 33 U.S.C. § 2706(a)-(g); Section 311(f) of the Clean Water Act (CWA), as amended, 33 U.S.C. § 1321(f); and other applicable federal and state laws and authorities including, but not limited to, the National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP), as amended, 40 C.F.R. Part 300, and to the extent appropriate and elected for use by the Parties, the CERCLA Natural Resource Damage Assessment and Restoration regulations, as amended, 43 C.F.R. Part 11, and OPA Natural Resource Damage Assessment regulations, as amended, 15 C.F.R. Part 990. The terms used in this MOU shall have the meaning of those that are defined in CERCLA, OPA, CWA, and in the federal regulations referred to above.

#### III. PURPOSE

The purpose of this MOU is to provide a framework for intergovernmental coordination, cooperation, and decision-making among the Trustees in furtherance of the natural resource damage assessment and restoration (hereafter "NRDAR") process where state and federal natural resource trustees jointly pursue NRD claims. The activities of the Trustees covered under this MOU include, but are not limited to: 1) the assessment of natural resource damages for injury to, destruction of, or loss of natural resources and associated services resulting from a spill or release; 2) the planning, design, implementation, maintenance, and/or monitoring of actions to restore, rehabilitate, replace, and/or acquire the equivalent of those natural resources and

services; 3) any prosecution or settlement of natural resource damage claims associated with a spill or release, including development of positions for covenants not to sue or administrative releases from liability; 4) coordination with response, remedial, or corrective actions carried out by or under the direction of other federal, state, or tribal agencies related to a spill or release; 5) public outreach and information sharing related to any of the above activities of the Trustees related to a spill or release; and 6) the securing of funding for any of the foregoing.

The MOU further addresses the application of any natural resource damages jointly recovered through any of the aforementioned activities toward: the restoration, rehabilitation, replacement, and/or acquisition of equivalent natural resources and associated services; reimbursement of reasonable assessment costs; and payment of Trustees' reasonable costs related to restoration planning and implementation as well as monitoring and adaptive management oversight.

### IV. PARTIES

- A. <u>Parties.</u> In accordance with Subpart G of the NCP, 40 C.F.R. §§ 300.600 through 300.615, and other applicable federal and state law, the following officials or their designated representatives are Parties to this MOU and act on behalf of the public as federal and state trustees for natural resources under this MOU:
  - 1. Director, Office of Restoration and Damage Assessment, U.S. Department of the Interior, acting on behalf of the Secretary of the Interior; and
  - 2. The Colorado Natural Resources Trustees
    - a. The Attorney General of the State of Colorado;
    - b. The Executive Director of the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment; and
    - c. The Executive Director of the Colorado Department of Natural Resources.
- B. <u>Other Natural Resource Trustees.</u> Notwithstanding any other provision of this MOU, any natural resource trustee who is not a Party to this MOU and who has a natural resource interest that is affected by a spill or release impacting natural resources in Colorado will not be precluded from participating in the NRDAR process or any other natural resource trustee activities under this MOU. Such other trustees may include, but are not limited to, tribal governments or other federal and state agencies, as necessary and appropriate and authorized by applicable federal, state, and tribal law.
- C. <u>Reservation of Authority.</u> Nothing in this MOU is to imply, or operate in a manner, that any natural resource trustee with an interest in a spill or release impacting natural resources in Colorado, whether a Party to this MOU or not, is in any way abrogating or ceding any natural resource trustee responsibility or authority over natural resources that may have been affected by a spill or release.

### V. NATURAL RESOURCE DAMAGES

In recognition of the Congressional intent under OPA and CERCLA to restore natural resources and associated services injured as a result of discharges of oil or releases of hazardous substances, respectively, the measure of recoverable natural resource damages contemplated under this MOU may include:

- reasonable costs of assessing natural resource injury, including direct and indirect costs;
- the costs of restoration, rehabilitation, or replacement of injured or lost natural resources or of acquisition of equivalent natural resources;
- the costs of planning, administering, overseeing, and monitoring such restoration activities; and
- compensation for loss of use, other lost or reduced natural resource services, or diminution in value of natural resources from the onset of injury until the completion of restoration or recovery.

Documented Trustee costs for either the assessment or restoration may include coordination with removal, remedial, corrective, or other response actions carried out by other federal and state agencies in an effort to abate and/or minimize continuing and residual injury, and to achieve or enhance restoration of injured natural resources.

### VI. NATURAL RESOURCE TRUSTEE COUNCIL

- A. <u>Establishment.</u> Pursuant to this MOU, the Parties may establish Natural Resource Trustee Councils (Trustee Councils) for specific spills or releases by resolution. A resolution establishing a Trustee Council, at a minimum, will identify the specific spill or release, location, and authorized officials for each participating Trustee that is also a Party to this MOU. The resolution may identify the composition of the Trustee Council as described in subsection B. All terms under this MOU will apply to Trustee Councils created for a specific spill or release unless specifically modified in a resolution.
- B. Composition of Trustee Councils established under this MOU:
  - 1. For each claim subject to this MOU, each Trustee may designate to a Trustee Council one Trustee Council Representative. Trustees may replace Trustee Council Representatives or name alternates as necessary;
  - 2. Other representatives from each Trustee, such as Trustees' legal counsel or agency representatives with special expertise, may attend meetings and participate in the deliberations of a Trustee Council; and
  - 3. A representative of the Lead Administrative Trustee (LAT), as designated in Section VII, may serve as the initial chairperson for Trustee Council meetings. The Trustee Council Representatives may agree to reassign or rotate the position of chairperson as they deem

appropriate. The Trustee Council Chairperson, with the assistance of the LAT, will be responsible for organizing and scheduling meetings, preparing proposed meeting agendas, identifying in the agendas any issues to be decided upon at the proposed meeting, distributing agendas to the primary and alternate representatives of each Trustee and to legal counsel in advance of meetings, and presiding over convened meetings.

### C. Decision-making.

- 1. All Trustee Council decisions will be made by unanimous agreement of all Trustee Council Representatives. The Trustees agree that decisionmaking deliberations will focus on the Trustees' mutual goals as set forth in this MOU;
- 2. Trustee Council Representatives will conduct good faith discussions directed toward obtaining unanimous agreement. The goal of the Trustee Council will be to resolve disputes informally. In the event agreement cannot be reached, the dispute resolution procedures in Paragraph D below will govern; and
- 3. Material Trustee Council decisions will be recorded in writing and approved by resolution or other Trustee Council documents.
- D. Dispute Resolution. In the event of a dispute involving any decisions under this MOU, including but not necessarily limited to potential resolution of a claim, Trustee Council Representatives will initially attempt to resolve the dispute through good faith discussions directed toward obtaining unanimous agreement of the Trustee Council. If unanimous agreement cannot be reached after good faith discussions, the matter will be elevated to the next management level within each Trustee's agency for decision or further instructions. If unanimous agreement still cannot be reached, the matter will be further elevated to the named individuals who executed this MOU, or their successors, and, for federal Trustees, each Trustee's authorized official for the specific spill or release. If necessary, the Trustees may establish other mechanisms by which disputes may be resolved. In the event unanimous agreement cannot be achieved, each Trustee Council Representative may take individual positions or actions on their own behalf, but such individual positions or actions will not constitute or be regarded as positions or actions of the Trustee Council. In the event of irreconcilable disputes, the Trustees may agree to dissolve the Trustee Council and, if necessary, split funds into a state account to be controlled collectively by the Colorado Natural Resource Trustees and a federal account to be controlled by the Federal Trustee; however, disposition of funds recovered from potentially responsible parties (PRPs) will be governed by Section IX(A) below.
- E. <u>Duties and Responsibilities.</u> Trustee Councils established under this MOU will coordinate all Trustee activities and matters directed towards the resolution of the Trustees' respective natural resource damage claims. Each Trustee Council

Representative shall be responsible for coordinating with and obtaining authorization from their respective Trustee in carrying out their responsibilities. In addition, Trustee Councils will be responsible for all NRDAR activities, including but not limited to, conducting the assessment, identifying and developing study plans, restoration planning, restoration implementation, and oversight both prior to and subsequent to final settlement or judgment covering all Trustee natural resource damages claims arising from the spill or release for which the Trustee Council was created.

In accordance with applicable law, Trustee Councils will carry out the following duties as necessary:

- 1. Oversee the development, implementation, and monitoring of plans and reports for the assessment, restoration, replacement, rehabilitation, and/or acquisition of equivalent resources for those natural resources and/or their services that may be injured, destroyed, or lost;
- 2. Conduct or oversee scientific and technical studies, sampling, and other matters, including data collection during response, related to the determination of injuries and/or the assessment of injuries to natural resources and their services which may have been lost, injured, or destroyed;
- 3. In coordination with each Trustee's counsel, seek compensation from the PRP(s) for damages for restoration, assessment costs, and for the Trustee costs of planning and implementing the assessment and/or restoration;
- 4. Participate in negotiations with the PRP(s);
- 5. Coordinate NRDAR activities with response actions carried out by other federal and state agencies, as appropriate;
- 6. In accordance with respective agency policy and delegation of authority, manage any money jointly paid to the Trustees (either advanced funding or recovered damages) for the purpose of assessing, restoring, replacing, rehabilitating, and/or acquiring the equivalent of the affected natural resources and/or their services;
- 7. Develop contracts with professional consultants that the Trustee Council determines are necessary to fulfill Trustee duties and responsibilities pursuant to applicable statutes and regulations;
- 8. Encourage public participation and involvement in a manner consistent with applicable law and regulation;
- 9. Maintain an administrative record of assessment and restoration activities;
- 10. Approve documents to be made available to the public (e.g., milestone documents, study plans, reports, restoration plans) either by signature on the document or written (email is acceptable) approval by the Trustee representative or authorized official for each Trustee; and
- 11. Coordinate and/or carry out such other actions as may be necessary and appropriate to achieve the purposes of this MOU and to fulfill the responsibilities of each Trustee.

### VII. LEAD ADMINISTRATIVE TRUSTEE

- A. <u>Designation</u>. The Trustee Council may designate a LAT for NRDAR actions under this MOU upon unanimous approval. The Trustee Council will memorialize a LAT designation in writing.
- B. <u>Duties.</u> The LAT's duties will include, but are not limited to: scheduling meetings of the Trustee Council and notifying members of those meetings on a timely basis; preparing, in consultation with other Trustees, agendas for those meetings; acting as a central contact point for the Trustee Council; establishing and maintaining the administrative record for the NRDAR and acting as repository for other related records and documents; and performing other administrative duties as directed by the Trustee Council. The LAT will be responsible for informing the other Trustee Council members of all pertinent developments on a timely basis. The LAT may delegate any of its duties to another Trustee, with the permission of that Trustee. The LAT will fully coordinate its activities with and only act under the direction of the Trustee Council; assigned duties do not provide the LAT with decision-making rights for any other Trustee or beyond those normally held by each Trustee.

### VIII. ASSESSMENT AND OTHER EXPENDITURES

- A. <u>Potentially Responsible Party Funding</u>. If PRP funding of assessment activities becomes available, the Trustee Council may enter into an agreement with the PRP(s) in which the PRP(s) agrees to fund and/or conduct assessment activities, including assessment or early restoration. Such an agreement will specify the terms of the activity, monetary disbursement, if any, the PRP(s')'s level of participation, and other terms and conditions as the Trustee Council determines are necessary and appropriate. To the extent provided by law, each Trustee agrees to cooperate in the administration of PRP funding. Each Trustee may have unique claims for unreimbursed past assessment costs and will coordinate the recovery of those costs from PRPs if needed.
- B. <u>Trustee Agency Assessment Funds.</u> Each Trustee agrees to coordinate the expenditure of any funds that are or may become available to a Trustee for the purposes of assessment.
- C. <u>Reimbursement of Trustee Assessment Costs.</u> The Trustees agree to request the PRP(s) to separately reimburse each individual Trustee agency for past and future assessment costs. Each Trustee's recovered past assessment costs may be used at its individual discretion in accordance with applicable law.

### IX. USE OF RECOVERED NATURAL RESOURCE DAMAGES

- A. <u>Exclusive Use of Recovered Damages.</u> The Trustees agree that any natural resource damages recovery (hereafter referred to as "Restoration Funds") will be used for the purpose of assessing, restoring, replacing, rehabilitating, and/or acquiring the equivalent of the affected natural resources, consistent with 42 U.S.C. § 9607(f)(1) and 33 U.S.C. § 2706(d)(1)(A).
- B. <u>Deposit and Management of Restoration Funds.</u> To the extent permitted by law, the Trustees may, but are not required to, deposit jointly recovered Restoration Funds in the U.S. Department of the Interior Natural Resource Damage Assessment and Restoration Fund or other interest-bearing account to be disbursed only for the purposes described in this MOU and in accord with the provisions of this MOU. The Trustees may work with the U.S. Department of the Interior Restoration Fund Manager, and/or their designee, in identifying risk-free investments, such as U.S. Treasury Bills, to earn a higher rate of return appropriate for unexpended restoration funds until their use is necessary. Appropriate investment activities will be determined through the decision-making process set forth in Paragraph C of Section VI of this MOU and will be approved by Trustee Council resolution. Interest earned on any investment of Restoration Funds will be made available for use by the Trustees in accordance with this MOU.
- C. <u>Trustee Council Resolutions.</u> All decisions authorizing the use of jointly recovered Restoration Funds will be memorialized in a Trustee Council resolution. Such resolutions may cover the entire sum approved for a given project, for a project phase, or for particular activities.

## X. NOTIFICATION OF NEGOTIATIONS WITH POTENTIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARTIES

The Trustees agree that they will endeavor to have coordinated communications with the PRP(s) or their agents related to NRDAR claims the Parties jointly pursue.

The above agreement does not preclude a Trustee or their agent from having separate communications with the PRP(s) on matters within the scope of the MOU where circumstances warrant, provided that such Trustee or Trustee Council member or agent informs and consults with other Trustees, either prior to the communication or in a timely manner thereafter.

Unless this MOU is terminated in accordance with Section XVI, no Trustee may enter separate settlement negotiations with the PRP(s) for any spills or releases which fall under this MOU, with the exception of negotiations conducted by a Trustee pursuant to reservation of rights in accordance with Section XII of this MOU, unless all Trustees and their representatives agree in writing to such independent negotiations.

### XI. CONFIDENTIALITY AND RECORD DOCUMENTS

- A. Confidentiality. The Trustees and their representatives support an open government policy of providing access to scientific information created or obtained by the Trustees during the NRDAR process. The Trustees agree that it is in the public interest to make scientific data arising out of their review of the injury to natural resources at and/or from any discharge of oil or release of hazardous substances within the State of Colorado publicly available or provide data if requested. However, all Parties to this MOU recognize that all written or oral communications related to the assessment and recovery of damages for injury to natural resources are being undertaken in anticipation of litigation. Accordingly, the Trustees will treat qualifying oral and written communications and work products as privileged attorney-client communications, attorney work products, or protected by other applicable privilege (or a combination thereof), as appropriate, and qualifying oral and written communication will be protected from disclosure to the maximum extent possible under applicable federal or state law. Privileged documents will be maintained in such a manner as to ensure that no intentional or unintentional disclosure is made which would compromise any asserted privilege. To ensure protection of qualifying documents that a Trustee considers to be attorney-client privileged communication, attorney work product, or other applicable privilege, the originating Trustee should mark the documents with the appropriate privilege.
- B. <u>Common Interest.</u> After any discharge of oil or release of hazardous substances within the State of Colorado, the Trustees have potential claims for damages and anticipate possible litigation with PRP(s). In furtherance of their common interests, the Trustees to this MOU intend to work together by communicating in confidence about claims, evidence, settlement strategy, and other subjects pertaining to the possibility of litigation by the Trustees against the PRPs.
- C. <u>Public Records Request.</u> The Trustees agree that whenever a request for production of a record related to the NRDAR is received pursuant to any applicable federal or state law, the request will, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, be forwarded for response to the Trustee or Trustees to which the privilege applies or whose representatives originally generated or contributed the record requested. It is understood and agreed upon that all information required to be disclosed pursuant to the federal Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552 *et seq.*, or the Colorado Open Records Act, C.R.S. § 24-72-201 *et seq.*, will be released. Nothing contained herein will be construed as prohibiting or restraining the Trustees from agreeing to release any record or from disclosing any record for which disclosure is required by law.
- D. <u>Administrative Record Index.</u> As warranted by each spill or release, the LAT will open and maintain an administrative record index to the extent required by and consistent with the requirements of the relevant OPA or CERCLA NRDAR regulations. In addition, in accordance with applicable law and

regulation, the Trustees commit to providing the public with reasonable notice of and appropriate and meaningful opportunities to comment on the NRDAR process, such as seeking comment on a draft assessment plan, draft study plans, and draft restoration plan(s) for any discharge of oil or release of hazardous substances within the State of Colorado.

### XII. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

This document is not intended to create or diminish any further legal rights or obligations between the Trustees or their respective representatives and/or any other persons not party to this MOU. Nothing in this MOU is to imply that any signatory agency is in any way abrogating or ceding any responsibilities or authority inherent in its control or trusteeship over natural resources. All Trustees understand that this document is not intended to create any further legal rights.

Nothing in this MOU is intended to be or will be construed to be an admission by any Trustee in any dispute or action between the Trustees or between the Trustees and a third party.

Nothing in this MOU will be construed as a waiver of, or foreclosing the exercise of, any rights, powers, remedies, or privileges of the individual Trustees or any other tribal, state, or federal agency now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, by statute or otherwise.

Nothing in this MOU is intended to conflict with existing directives or policies of any Trustee. If the terms of this MOU are found to be inconsistent with existing directives or policies of any Trustee, those portions of this MOU that are determined to be inconsistent will be identified by the affected Trustee. Within thirty (30) calendar days of notice of the inconsistency, the Trustees will discuss the inconsistency and determine whether it is possible, appropriate, and necessary to modify this MOU.

A Trustee engaging in independent NRDAR claims or negotiations must withdraw from this MOU in accordance with Section XVI unless such claims or negotiations are for individual Trustee reimbursement of costs in accordance with Section VIII of this MOU, or are unanimously approved by the Trustee Council.

### XIII. ANTIDEFICIENCY ACT

Nothing in this MOU will be construed as obligating the United States, the State of Colorado, or any other public agency, their officers, agents, or employees, to expend any funds in excess of amounts available in appropriations authorized by law, 31 U.S.C. §§ 1341, 1517, or funds received from the PRP(s) for actions related to any discharge of oil or release of hazardous substances within the State of Colorado.

### XIV. THIRD PARTY CHALLENGES OR APPEALS

This MOU is not intended to, nor shall it, vest rights in persons who do not represent the Parties to this MOU or who are not Parties to this MOU. The rights and responsibilities contained in this MOU are subject to the availability of funding. This MOU will not be the basis of any claims, rights, causes of action, challenges, or appeals by any person.

### XV. MODIFICATION

Modification of this MOU must be in writing and contingent upon approval of all Trustees that are currently Parties to the MOU. The modified MOU may be executed in counterparts. Once fully executed, the modified MOU will be sent to all Parties.

### XVI. TERMINATION AND WITHDRAWAL

This MOU will be in effect from the Effective Date, as defined in Section XVII, until such time that the Trustees unanimously determine that the purposes underlying the MOU have been fulfilled. Any Trustee may withdraw from this MOU by giving the other Trustees written notice at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance of the withdrawal. In the event of such withdrawal, this MOU will terminate. In the event of the withdrawal of a Trustee, or at the termination of this MOU, each Trustee will cooperate with the others in preparing a full and complete accounting of all funds received, deposited, held, disbursed, or expended pursuant to this MOU, except for funds already received from the PRP(s), to reimburse the withdrawing Trustee's past assessment costs. Documents relevant to the NRDAR claim maintained by the withdrawing Trustee must be provided to the LAT that maintains records if a LAT has been designated for the specific incident. For confidential documents, in accordance with Paragraph A of Section XI, such confidentiality survives any termination of or withdrawal from this MOU.

### XVII. EXECUTION AND EFFECTIVE DATE

This MOU may be executed in counterparts. The effective date of the MOU shall be the date on which the last Trustee to sign the MOU does so sign. Other duly designated Trustees may elect to become an additional Party to this MOU. The effective date as applied to any additional Parties becomes effective on the date of its signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this MOU on the dates attested to below.

United States Department of the Interior:

By: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Emily Joseph Director, Office of Restoration and Damage Assessment

Colorado Natural Resources Trustees:

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

By: \_\_\_\_\_\_\_Phil Weiser Colorado Attorney General Colorado Natural Resources Trustee

By:

Date:

Trisha Oeth Director of Environmental Health and Protection Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment Colorado Natural Resources Trustee

By: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Dan Gibbs Executive Director, Colorado Department of Natural Resources Colorado Natural Resources Trustee

ITEMS #6-8 NO DOCUMENTS